
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

June 21, 2011 



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION June 21, 2011 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA      
 

WASINGER       OLIVER   
    
   WALLIN    JOHNSON    
 
 
  
1. Approval of Minutes – April 26, 2011  
 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items 

not otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting.  
 

3. SHORELINE SUBSTANTIAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT- CITY OF OAK 
HARBOR MULTIMODAL FACILITY PROJECT– PUBLIC HEARING  
The Planning Commission will consider a Shoreline Substantial Development 
Permit for the proposed construction of a new 2,325 square foot multipurpose 
building with meeting room and restroom facilities. An additional 525 square foot 
picnic shelter, plaza, trail improvements, paved parking and circular drive are 
also planned.  The project location is 1370 SE Dock Street, parcel S6565-00-
00C09-0. The Planning Commission will forward a recommendation to the City 
Council. 

 
 
 

 
 

1



MINUTES 

 

April 26, 2011 

2



 

Planning Commission 
April 26, 2011 

Page 1 of 3 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
April 26, 2011 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Bruce Neil, Keith Fakkema, Kristi Jensen, Jeff Wallin, Greg Wasinger 

and Jill Johnson.  Absent: Gerry Oliver.  Staff Present:  Senior Planner, Cac 
Kamak. 

 
Chairman Neil called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: MR. FAKKEMA MOVED, MR. WALLIN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE MARCH 29, 2011 MINUTES AS PRESENTED.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  No members of the public were present for comment. 
 
CHANGING ZONING DESIGNATIONS TO CORRESPOND WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
LAND USE MAP– Public Hearing 
  
Chairman Neil opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Kamak reported that the three proposed rezonings before the Planning Commission would 
implement land use changes approved as part of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan amendments.  
The Planning Commission has reviewed each of the proposals as part of the Comprehensive 
Plan amendment process.  The Comprehensive Plan amendments were approved by the City 
Council in December 2010.  This rezoning process follows through with the land use 
amendments and, if approved by the City Council, will officially amend the zoning map to 
implement the changes to the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Mr. Kamak explained the relationship between the land use map and the zoning map.   
 
Mr. Kamak reviewed the three sites that are being considered for a change in zoning 
designation as follows: 
 
Scenic Heights Trailhead Site 
Existing Zoning:  R-1, Single Family Residential 
Proposed Zoning:  PF, Public Facilities 
 
The property is located on the east side of Scenic Heights Road and south and east of the SW 
19th Court.  The property was purchased by the City to ensure connection of the waterfront trail 
to the pedestrian sidewalk system of Oak Harbor.  This site also serves as a trailhead to the 
Freund Marsh area. 
 
Water Reservoir Site 
Existing Zoning: PBP, Planned Business Park 
Proposed Zoning: PF, Public Facilities 
 
The property is located north of Gun Club Road west of the Gun Club. The property is the future 
site of a reservoir that will serve Oak Harbor’s water system.   
 
 

3



 

Planning Commission 
April 26, 2011 

Page 2 of 3 

SE corner of SR 20 and Fakkema Road 
Existing Zoning: C-4, Highway Service Commercial 
Proposed Zoning: OS, Open Space 
 
The property was jointly acquired by the City, County and NAS Whidbey to limit the 
development potential of the property due to its location in the Accident Potential Zone (APZ) of 
Ault Field’s operations.  The Parks and Recreation Plan recommend that the property be 
developed as a Garry Oak grove.  
 
Mr. Kamak also noted that the staff report details criteria for evaluating rezoning requests. 
 
Chairman Neil closed the public hearing. 
 
ACTION: MR. FAKKEMA MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE SCENIC HEIGHTS 
TRAILHEAD SITE ZONING DESIGNATION CHANGE FROM R-1, SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TO PF, PUBLIC FACILITIES. 

 
ACTION: MR. JENSEN MOVED, MR. WALLIN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE WATER 
RESERVOIR SITE ZONING DESIGNATION CHANGE FROM PBP, PLANNED 
BUSINESS PARK TO PF, PUBLIC FACILITIES. 

 
MOTION: MS. JENSEN MOVED TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVE THE SE CORNER OF SR 20 AND FAKKEMA ROAD ZONING 
DESIGNATION CHANGE FROM PBP, PLANNED BUSINESS PARK TO PF, 
PUBLIC FACILITIES, MR. FAKKEMA SECONDED THE MOTION. 

 
Discussion: 
Ms. Johnson said that she would vote no due to her concern about locking one of the most 
viable commercial properties that the City has into Open Space zoning permanently.  Once 
Garry Oaks are on the property the community won’t allow them to be removed and if the 
Navy’s mission changed, the property would be locked into the Open Space designation. 
 
Mr. Wasinger asked how difficult it would be to change the zoning designation.  Mr. Kamak 
reported that the Navy’s representative spoke with him and the Navy’s concern was that the 
proposed zoning permits a clubhouse recreation amenity.  Mr. Kamak said that he had 
explained to the Navy representative that there are three levels of restrictions on the property.  
Restriction one; the property is in the Accident Potential Zone (APZ), restriction two; the City 
owns the property and restriction three; there are deed restrictions that restrict development on 
the property.  As far as changing the zoning; if the Navy’s changes its operations and the APZ 
goes away.  The deed restrictions would have to be removed so the County, the City and the 
Navy would have to come together and agree that the restrictions don’t apply to the property 
anymore.  A Comprehensive Plan amendment would have to be done to zone the property back 
to Commercial.  Mr. Kamak acknowledged that Ms. Johnson was correct that it would be more 
difficult to change the zoning to Commercial once Garry Oaks are on the property. 
 
Mr. Neil asked who would have to make the request to rezone.  Mr. Kamak said that any one of 
the property owners could make the request or members of the public who could demonstrate 
that there was enough public support could request a change in zoning. 
 

4



 

Planning Commission 
April 26, 2011 

Page 3 of 3 

Mr. Fakkema asked if Gerry Oaks were planted would the trees be planted in rows.  Mr. Kamak 
said that they would be planted in a way that would provide the most natural environment along 
with other native species to sustain that environment for the trees.  In prior conversation with the 
County and the Navy they have said it is okay to have a trail and a couple of picnic tables for 
public access. 
 
There was some discussion about the potential leasing of the property should the property 
revert back to commercial use. 
 
VOTE: THE MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4 IN FAVOR AND 1 OPPOSED. 
 
ADJOURN:  8:04p.m. 

5



Multimodal Facility 

Shoreline Substantial Development 

Permit 

 

Public Hearing 

 

6



  

 
Date: June 21, 2011    
Subject:  Shoreline Substantial Development 
Permit for the Multimodal Facility Project  
 

 
FROM:  Melissa Sartorius 
   Associate Planner 
   
 

City of Oak Harbor 
Report to the Planning 
Commission 

PURPOSE 
This report presents the application (Attachment 1) for a Shoreline Substantial 
Development Permit by the City of Oak Harbor to construct uplands improvements 
associated with the Multimodal Facility Project in Flintstone Park.  The report highlights 
the goals and policies that are relevant to the review of the application.  The Findings of 
Facts on the project are also included with the report.  The Shoreline Master Program 
requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing, adopt findings and make a 
recommendation to the City Council. 
 
AUTHORITY 
RCW 98.58.050 provides the authority and the responsibility to local governments for the 
planning and administering the shoreline regulatory program consistent with the 
Shoreline Management Act. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Proposed project 
The City of Oak Harbor proposes to construct a new 2,325 square foot multipurpose 
building with meeting room and restroom facilities. An additional 525 square foot picnic 
shelter, plaza, trail improvements, paved parking and circular drive are also planned.  The 
existing picnic shelter and restrooms will be demolished.  The project is Phase 1 of the 
overall Multimodal Facility Project.  Phase 1 consists of the uplands improvements to 
Flintstone Park. The City of Oak Harbor has applied for a Shoreline Substantial 
Development Permit to construct the aforementioned improvements. 
 
The proposed project is located across the street from the Island Transit station, and 
adjacent to condominiums to the west of the site. The main access to the site is from east 
or west on SE Bayshore Drive. There is also a connecting street, SE Dock Street, from 
Pioneer Way. Pioneer Way connects to State Route 20 about one half mile to the west.  
Users are able to access Flintstone Park from numerous public access points, reducing the 
demand on any one site to provide large amounts of parking.  There are parking spaces 
along Bayshore Drive and in the Central Business District (CBD) within a short walking 
distance of the proposed site. Eleven parking spaces are proposed on site, one of which is 
ADA compliant.  More than half of the parking spaces are parallel to the circular drive to 
allow for efficient drop off and pickup.  

1 
 

7



  

 
Approximately 11,300 square feet of additional impervious cover is proposed in the 
upland part of the project, primarily in a new paved path, the multipurpose building, and 
the adjacent plaza. The building provides about 1,500 square feet of space for formal and 
informal activities, including dining, small meetings, celebrations and ceremonies. 
Capacity would be approximately 92 people.  
 
The proposed location is within the shoreline environment of Oak Harbor and approval 
of this project is therefore subject to review under the provisions of the City of Oak 
Harbor Shoreline Master Program. Specifically, the proposal as designed must meet the 
requirements for issuance of shoreline substantial development permit (for all activity 
related to the proposal). 
 
Project Summary                      
Project Name:  Multimodal Facility Project 
 
Applicant:   City of Oak Harbor 
    Joe Stowell, Project Engineer 
 
Location:   1370 SE Dock Street  
 
Property Owner:  City of Oak Harbor 
  
Zoning:   PF - Public Facilities 
 
Land Use Designation: Public Facilities 
 
Shoreline Environment: Urban 
 
Acreage:   Uplands – 1.51 acres 
 
Public Notice 
A Notice of Application (NOA) for the proposed project was posted on the property and 
published in the newspaper, as per the requirement of the Shoreline Master Program for 
two consecutive weeks, on May 14, 2011 and May 21, 2011.  The notice provided a 
comment period of 30 days with a deadline of June 20, 2011.  Property owners within 
300 feet of the project were also notified my mail. No comments have been received as of 
the date of this report. 
 
The Public Hearing for the Planning Commission was advertised in the newspaper on 
June 4, 2011. The hearing notice was also mailed to property owners within 300 feet. No 
comments have been received as of the date of this report. 
 
 

2 
 

8



  

SEPA 
The original environmental assessment and determination made in 2003 still applies to 
this project in accordance with the checklist requirements of the State Environmental 
Policy Act of 1971; no adoption or changes are needed per WAC 197-11-600(4)(a).  This 
proposal has been determined to not have a significant impact upon the environment.  An 
Environmental Impact Statement is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)C. A 
Mitigated Determination of Non Significance was issued for the project on October 13, 
2003.  A copy of the Determination has been included (Attachment 3) for your reference. 
 
The mitigation measures included in the determination and checklist that address the 
uplands improvements to the site include erosion control, minimizing light and glare 
impacts by using downward directing lighting fixtures, temporary silt fences, 
transportation concurrency and archaeological response.  
 
For more details on the mitigation measures, please refer to the MDNS in Attachment 3.  
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND (excerpt from 2003 Shoreline Permit)    
The location proposed for the new Oak Harbor Municipal Pier is about 250 feet east of 
the site where the historic Maylor Dock once stood. Built in the 1890s, when the City’s 
only link to the mainland was by water, the Maylor Dock was for the decades that 
followed synonymous with the necessary exchange of goods that provided livelihoods 
and provisions for an island community. The dock also served an important social 
function in bringing visitors and mail to early Oak Harbor. With the completion of 
Deception Pass Bridge in 1935, the importance of the Maylor Dock waned, although it 
remained in constant use until 1966 when fire destroyed the structure. 
 
Organizational work to explore building a new pier started in earnest in January 1998 
with the appointment of a Citizen’s Planning Advisory Committee for the Reconstruction 
of the Maylor Pier. The subsequent report to the City Council in May of that year 
concluded that support was high for redeveloping a pier facility, one that had potential to 
serve the dual purpose of a highly desirable local landmark and attraction and a regional 
transportation hub that might attract a passenger ferry service to Oak Harbor. The 
Advisory Committee also recommended that the next step should be to contract for a 
professional feasibility study to study and refine the approach. 
 
The City hired a consultant team in October 1998 to look at the potential demand for use 
of the pier as a transportation facility, to evaluate alternatives and select a preferred pier 
location and configuration, to estimate costs for construction and to outline 
implementation strategies. Three alternatives were explored in terms of function and 
operation, constructability, relative environmental impacts and costs. Following public 
review, the consultants, in combination with the renamed Oak Harbor Municipal Dock 
Committee, presented in September 1999 the final Oak Harbor Municipal Pier 
Feasibility Analysis with a preferred alternative. 
 

3 
 

9



  

Since that date, the City has contracted for several technical studies and for a biological 
evaluation and mitigation plan. These include the Oak Harbor Municipal Pier Dredge 
Material Characterization Report (June 2001), the Oak Harbor Municipal Pier 
Eelgrass/Macro Algae Habitat Surveys (December 2002), the Mitigation Plan of the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Pier Project (May 2003) and the Oak Harbor Municipal Pier Project 
Biological Evaluation (July 2003). Collectively, these documents provide a foundation 
for the project description, Shoreline Master Program analysis and proposed conditions 
described in detail in the sections that follow. 
 
On August 28, 2003, the City submitted the attached Joint Aquatic Resources Permit 
Application (JARPA) in support of its request for a shoreline substantial development 
permit, shoreline conditional use permit and shoreline variance. This same application 
had been submitted previously to the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, the 
Washington Department of Ecology, the Army Corps of Engineers and the National 
Marine Fisheries Service. Each of these agencies has permit authority over some aspect 
of the municipal pier project. The Planning Commission is responsible for reviewing the 
local permits only. 
 
Finally, the City’s Environmental Official issued a final Mitigated Determination of 
Nonsignificance on October 13, 2003 (see attached). In making this determination, it was 
concluded that all of the anticipated environmental impacts from the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Pier Project can be mitigated to a level of nonsignificance and that an 
environmental impact statement is not required. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM     
The primary responsibility of the Planning Commission with respect to this proposal is to 
ensure that it is consistent with the Oak Harbor Shoreline Master Program (SMP). The 
SMP establishes permitted and conditional uses by shoreline environment and 
performance measures for those uses that are considered appropriate for a given location. 
It also establishes criteria and grounds for considering conditional uses and variances. 
The following analysis addresses the shoreline substantial development permit. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Flintstone Park is located within the area designated as an Urban Environment in the 
Shoreline Master Program.  The proposed project is a permitted use within this 
designation.  The project falls primarily under Section 5.17, Recreation, of the Shoreline 
Master Program.  However, the project impacts the waterfront trail and the existing 
parking lot.  Their redevelopment is supported by policies and regulations in other 
sections of the program.   
 
Uplands Improvements 
The improvements to the uplands, including construction of the new multipurpose 
building, are the primary scope of this phase of the project.  Therefore the project is 

4 
 

10



  

primarily reviewed under the policies and regulations of the following section of the 
Shoreline Master Program: 

 
5.17 Recreation 

Policies 
1. Preference should be given to developments which provide for 

recreational activities and improvements facilitating public access to the 
shoreline.  This is a community project that provides public access to the 
shoreline by way of improved trail connections and an overlook.  The 
redevelopment allows for an increased public use of the site by creating 
the meeting room and improvements to the parking lot. In the interim 
(until permanent pier construction) the uplands project may lead to 
increased usage of the existing municipal dock adjacent to the site.  

 
2. A variety of water oriented recreational activities should be encouraged to 

locate on shorelines to satisfy diverse needs and interests of residents and 
visitors. The redevelopment of the site will increase the types of activities 
available to residents and visitors from current conditions.  The addition 
of a meeting room, an outdoor plaza with tables, and widening of the 
Waterfront Trail all help increase the amount of amenities available in 
Flintstone Park and in general the greater Oak Harbor Parks and 
Recreation System. 

 
3. Linkage such as walkways, walking and/or bicycle paths between 

shoreline recreational and public access areas should be provided. The 
Waterfront Trail currently exists along the southern boundary of the park 
next to the shoreline.  The proposal includes widening of this trail from 6 
feet to 12 feet along the Flintstone Park portion. Improvements to this 
portion of the trail are part of the larger Waterfront Trail system in which 
the multimodal facility is centrally located. Additionally, the overlook will 
be improved with a paved path that connects the Waterfront Trail to the 
new parking area. The overlook path will contain new benches, bollards, 
and trash receptacles. 

 
4. Recreational developments should be located, designed and operated to be 

compatible with adjacent uses and to minimize adverse affects on 
ecological and aesthetic qualities of the shoreline and the water. Parks are 
commonly considered compatible with residential areas as they generally 
have less noise and operational impacts than commercial districts. 
Residents can use and enjoy the amenities of a nearby community or 
neighborhood park.  Flintstone Park serves as an important niche by 
providing public shoreline access to downtown Oak Harbor and to the 
nearby Island Transit station. All of the proposed work is upland of the 
ordinary high water mark and distinct clearing limits and silt fencing are 

5 
 

11



  

shown on the civil plans in order to protect ecological and aesthetic 
qualities of the shoreline. 

 
5. Recreational developments should be designed to preserve or create open 

space and public use of the water and the shorelines. The proposal 
preserves open space within the city and improves public access to the 
shoreline. 

 
Regulations 
1. The City may adjust or require changes to project dimensions, use 

intensity, parking provisions or landscaping in approving recreational 
developments to ensure that scenic views and ecological qualities of the 
site are protected. As this is a city project the design process took into 
account and was sensitive to the items addressed by this regulation. 

 
2. Protect the rights and property of residents from adverse impacts due to 

recreational shoreline uses. The only adjacent residential uses are 
condominiums along the western property line. As the proposed use is 
similar to the existing use, impacts (if any) are largely known, therefore 
mitigation of potential impacts are focused on construction of the project. 
In order to avoid adverse impacts from construction of the park on the 
residents, the following measures will be employed:  limiting construction 
to those hours stipulated in the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, use 
downward directing or shielded light fixtures, and install landscaping 
along the western property line as a buffer from the park use while 
retaining scenic views from the condos by reducing the height of the 
landscaping. 

 
3. Safe pedestrian walkways shall be provided between parking areas and 

recreational facilities they serve. Within the site, the Waterfront Trail 
serves as a safe pedestrian sidewalk between the recreational shoreline 
and the parking area of the site.  The parking area includes delivery and 
drop-off locations along a circular drive which is buffered by the trail. 
The separation of pedestrians and vehicles will be an improvement from 
the existing situation. 

 
4. Recreational facilities which normally require the use of large quantities of 

chemical fertilizers and herbicides such as playing fields shall not be 
located over water or in shoreline areas, unless adequate provisions can be 
made for protection of water areas from drainage and surface runoff. This 
regulation does not directly apply to this proposal there are no large 
areas of grass similar to playing fields that are treated in Flintstone Park. 
The park is treated with a minor amount of fertilizer and herbicides once 
annually and best management practices are utilized by trained city staff.   

6 
 

12



  

 
5. Shoreline permit applications for recreational development shall include a 

parking and landscaping plan. The application contains a parking plan 
and landscape plan as part of the site plan package.  See Attachment 2 for 
more detail. 

 
The project is also reviewed against any regulation specific to a particular shoreline 
environment. In this case, there following regulation is specific to recreation in the urban 
environment:  

 
Regulations by Environment - Urban, Urban Residential 
Recreational development shall be permitted in the urban or urban residential 
environment subject to the policies and regulations of this Master Program and 
the Oak Harbor Critical Areas Ordinance.  However, RV Parks (public) are 
prohibited in the urban residential designation. 

 
 
Other Shoreline Use Policies 
As the project entails modifications to the trail and parking areas, staff reviewed the 
project against the following sections of the SMP: 

 
Waterfront Trail 
The existing waterfront trail is impacted by the project construction.  The project scope 
includes widening this portion of the waterfront trail and improving the overlook area as 
shown in Attachment 2.   The trail will be approximately 12 feet wide.  Listed below are 
supporting policies within the Shoreline Master Program for improving the trail. 
 

3.04 Public Access 
Policies 
1. Provide, protect and enhance a public access system that is both physical 

and visual, utilizing both private and public lands. The Oak Harbor Bay 
Trail, as described by the City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Park and 
Recreation Plan, provides a spine route for accessing Oak Harbor’s 
shoreline. 

 
 
4.02 Urban Environment 
Policies 
3. Provide public access to the shoreline. New and expanded development 

should be designed to include physical or visual access. 
 
4. Link public access points by pedestrian routes where practical. 
 
 

7 
 

13



  

5.19 Transportation Facilities 
Policies 
5. Trails and bicycle routes along shorelines should be provided in 

conformance with the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Parks and Recreation 
Plan. 

 
Parking 
The project includes redeveloping the existing parking lot. The Shoreline Master Program 
includes some general guidelines for parking.  The policies are listed below.  The 
guidelines are primarily targeted toward parking associated with a development (building 
or use). The parking lot redesign must meet the requirements of OHMC 19.44. 
 

5.02 General Regulations 
4. Parking 

In addition to parking requirements imposed by other City ordinances the 
following regulations shall also apply: 

 
a. Parking areas serving shoreline and over water uses shall be 

located off the street and landward of uses served unless 
incorporated into authorized structures, park landscapes or 
shoreline viewing areas accessible to the public. 

 
b. Whenever adequate on site parking cannot be provided and upland 

parking site shall be required.  Upland parking sites may serve 
individual uses or be managed for joint-use. 

 
c. Where there is no land area available on the landward side of 

developments or on adjacent uplands, parking areas shall be 
located no closer than 25 feet from the OHWM and shall be 
entirely screened from view from the water by plantings or a solid 
fence of a design consistent with other applicable ordinances.  In 
no case shall a fence or other screen block views of the water from 
public roads or areas. 

 
d. Where public access is included as a part of a development 

proposal, additional parking spaces to serve the general public may 
be required. 

 
In summary, projects that encourage public access and respect the natural environment 
tend to be supported by the SMP policies. Further, the multimodal facility will enhance 
public access and shoreline enjoyment by residents and visitors alike. Public amenities 
will be relatively modest, but the ability to use the multi-purpose building for meetings 
and events will be an improvement to the community. In its location, planning, 

8 
 

14



  

construction and future use, the pier project is conclusively consistent with our Shoreline 
Master Program. 
 
OAK HARBOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND OTHER PLANS 
In addition to consistency with the Shoreline Master Program, it is good planning practice 
and a requirement of the SMP to assess whether or not the proposed municipal pier 
improvements helps to further the community vision as expressed in adopted plans and 
policies. Clearly, building a new downtown pier to replace the Maylor Dock has been 
part of Oak Harbor’s municipal vocabulary for a number of years, and is firmly 
established as a desirable outcome in our Comprehensive Plan. The following policies 
and statements offer strong support for the current proposal. 
 
From the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan: 
 
Urban Design Element Policy 5.d: “Developments along Oak Harbor's waterfront should 
enhance the area's natural and physical aesthetics.” 
 
Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Element Policy Parks g: “Provide upland facilities at 
Flintstone Park that will support the Municipal Pier Project.” 
 
Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Element Recommendation: “Enhance the trail 
connection between Flintstone Park and the Marina as a multiuse trail and extend the trail 
from the Marina to Maylor Point.” 
 
Transportation Policy 3.e: “The City should explore planning, financing and designing a 
municipal pier in the downtown area, within close proximity to the Island Transit transfer 
station.” 
 
Transportation Policy 3.f: “The City should explore developing a municipal pier for 
passenger ferry service, float plane service and recreational day moorage. Marine 
education, fishing, emergency services and related entrepreneurial functions shall be 
included as ancillary uses.” 
 
Transportation Policy 3.g: “The City should explore all potential funding sources to 
finance the construction and operation of a downtown municipal pier.” 
 
Transportation Policy 3.h: “The City should explore opportunities for leases, franchises 
or use agreements for pier docking requirements of passenger ferry service providers with 
transportation linkages to Everett, Seattle, Langley, Camano Island, Coupeville and 
Mukilteo. Other linkages may be identified through citizen involvement. The City should 
explore opportunities for leases, franchises or use agreements for pier docking 
requirements of float plane transportation.” 
 

9 
 

15



  

From Harbor Watch: A Redevelopment Plan for Oak Harbor’s Downtown and 
Waterfront (1990): “Construct a water transportation pier extending south from the 50th 
Street [now Dock Street] axis. Light so that it becomes a ‘twilight promenade’ as well as 
offering a welcome mat for boaters and a dock for air and water transportation.” 
 
“Attract more active uses to Flintstone Park. Regrade a portion to provide a windbreak 
that can be used for picknicking or informal performances.” 
 
From Harbor Pride: A Blueprint for Change (2000): “The Oak Harbor Municipal Pier is 
an important downtown anchor that will promote public education and enjoyment of the 
natural harbor. The two legged pier design with multiple functions of commuter ferry and 
seaplane moorage will provide easy walking access into Old Town for arriving 
pedestrians.” 
 
From Oak Harbor Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan (2009): 
 
“Upland improvements at the Flintstone Park will continue to move the Municipal Pier 
project ahead by preparing the park for the eventual construction of the pier. 
 
This project will provide for the design and construction of the upland improvements 
associated with the Municipal Pier project.  The improvements will include restrooms, a 
waiting area and other upgrades to the park. 

 
Improvements Needed: 
• Surfaces could use an asphalt overlay  
• Shelter (donated by Lions in 80s) needs to be replaced 
• Rails on approach dock needs to be galvanized  
• Shoreline is unstable and needs repair and reinforcement 
• Light should be added along the trail 

 
Other Improvements: 
• Dock needs to be upgraded  

 
In summary, the proposal is consistent with adopted plans and policies. Because the 
proposed improvements will occur within the existing area of improvements, staff does 
not expect negative impacts from the project on the shoreline ecology or environment. 
 
SUMMARY 
With the list of conditions that were identified in the SEPA MDNS and the standard 
conditions related to subsequent review and permit restrictions, the staff believe that this 
proposal meets all adopted standards for the shoreline substantial development permit.  
These conditions are contained in the attached “Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and 

10 
 

16



  

11 
 

Entry of Order.” Adopting this document will forward a recommendation of conditional 
approval to the City Council, with appropriate findings. 
 
Recommendations 
1. Conduct the public hearing. 
2. Recommend that the City Council approve the Shoreline Substantial 

Development Permit 
3. Adopt the “Findings of Fact” (Attachment 4) 
 
Attachments:  
Attachment 1- Shoreline Substantial Development Permit (JARPA Application) 
Attachment 2- Site Plan 
Attachment 3- Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance (MDNS) 
Attachment 4- Findings of Fact  
 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44


	06-21-11 PC Agenda.pdf
	CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA
	PLANNING COMMISSION June 21, 2011
	ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA     
	WASINGER       OLIVER  


	PC Multimodal Facility Shoreline Substantial Development Permit Report.pdf
	Recommendations
	Attachments: 




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




